A Study of Some Trace Metals in Surface and Ground Waters at Bridgewater, Nova Scotia

T. L. Warner

Distribution License

DalSpace requires agreement to this non-exclusive distribution license before your item can appear on DalSpace.

NON-EXCLUSIVE DISTRIBUTION LICENSE

You (the author(s) or copyright owner) grant to Dalhousie University the non-exclusive right to reproduce and distribute your submission worldwide in any medium.

You agree that Dalhousie University may, without changing the content, reformat the submission for the purpose of preservation.

You also agree that Dalhousie University may keep more than one copy of this submission for purposes of security, back-up and preservation.

You agree that the submission is your original work, and that you have the right to grant the rights contained in this license. You also agree that your submission does not, to the best of your knowledge, infringe upon anyone's copyright.

If the submission contains material for which you do not hold copyright, you agree that you have obtained the unrestricted permission of the copyright owner to grant Dalhousie University the rights required by this license, and that such third-party owned material is clearly identified and acknowledged within the text or content of the submission.

If the submission is based upon work that has been sponsored or supported by an agency or organization other than Dalhousie University, you assert that you have fulfilled any right of review or other obligations required by such contract or agreement.

Dalhousie University will clearly identify your name(s) as the author(s) or owner(s) of the submission, and will not make any alteration to the content of the files that you have submitted.

If you have questions regarding this license please contact the repository manager at dalspace@dal.ca.

Grant the distribution license by signing and dating below.

Name of signatory

Date

TO: Dianne

Table of Contents

	Page
Introduction	• 1
General Setting	• 2
General Geology	• 2
Field Procedure	. 6
Laboratory Procedure	• 7
Results	• 10
Graphic Analysis	• 10
A Comparison with Other Waters	• 14
Discussion	• 15
Conclusion	• 22
References	23
Appendix A	• 25

Table of Illustrations

	Page
Figure1: General Topography	3
Plate 1: Photograph of general topography, looking south	4
Plate 2: Photograph of general topography, looking north	4
Figure 1a: General geology	5a
Table I: Range of Concentrations Used For Standards	9
Table II: Analyses of Waters fron NW Bridegwater, N.S.	11
Figure 2: Water Sample Locations	11a
Figure 3: pH of Water	11 Ъ
Figure 4: Ba ppm	11c
Figure 5: Ca ppm	11d
Figure 6: Cu ppm	11e
Figure 7: Fe ppm	11f
Figure 8: K ppm	11 g
Figure 9: Mg ppm	11h
Figure 10: Mn ppm	11i
Figure 11: Na ppm	11j
Figure 12: V ppm	1 1 k
Figure 13: Zn ppm	11L
Table III: Drinking Water Standards	16
Table IV: A comparison of trace metal concentrations with other water values	168

-

	Page
Plate 3: Surface drainage	1 8
Plate 4: Drainage ditch ,	18
Figure 14: Model for groundwater flow	1 9
Figure 15: Correlation of estimated Eh values and measured pH values	21

Abstract

Much controversy has arisen concerning the water quality in an area inorthwest of Bridgewater, Nova Scotia.

To resolve the problem, water samples were taken and analyzed for trace metals, from the area which was also mapped. This showed the area to be forested with the preferred drainage direction to be towards the La Have River. Two dumps were discovered which could affect the area. In order to construct highway 103, two road metal pits were opened. In these gits there is exposure of Halifax slates which have been metamorphased and folded. Interbedded in the slates are iron sulfides. The analysis of the water disclosed patterns of ion distribution radiating from the pits down slope. This is due to acid leaching of the newly exposed beds of iron sulfides in the slates. These mobilized ions are then precipitated down slope with a change in pH and other chemical properties.

Introduction

For the last two years, the residents of Northwest Bridgewater, Nova Scotia have reported a deterioration in the quality of their ground water. The reports began shortly after several pits were developed for road metal to construct a road bed for Highway 103. This study is an attempt to evaluate the current water quality by analyzing the trace metal content of surface and ground waters in this area.

The field work was carried out in November 1977 over a period of 7 days.

I would like to acknowledge help extended to me in this study by members of the department. In particular I would like to thank Professors D.J.W. Piper, D.B. Clarke, H.B.S. Cooke, T.W. Hennigar, W.B. Ervine, P.E. Schenk, Mr. S. Parikh, Mr. P.D. Bourque and Ms. D.E. Webb.

General Setting

The study area is 3 km. west of the town of Bridgewater, Nova Scotia and 100 km. southwest of Halifax. The 8 square kilometer area, measuring approximately 2 km. by 4 km. is on the south slope of the valley of the La Have River (Figure 1). It is forested, predominantly by white pine and spruce, and drained by streams and ditches flowing northeasterly to the La Have River. (Plate 1)

The natural ground surface has been disturbed in several places. Highway 103, consisting of two lanes, was constructed in 1975-76 (Plate 1). Road metal for this highway was removed from a large area just north of the tire factory (Figure 1 and Plate 2). This factory, about 4000 square meters in area, was built in 1970 and is owned and operated by the Michelin Tire Co. of Canada, Ltd.

There are also two dumps in the area. One is the town dump 0.5 km. south of the study area. The other is a small dump located in the west pit (Figure 1), consisting of tires, rubber and plastics. This dump appears to be fairly recent (3 months).

General Geology

The following summary of the geology is based on reports by Taylor (1964), by Schenk (1972), and on my

-2-



FIG 1 GENERAL TOPOGRAPHY

-3-



Plate 1: Photograph of general topography, taken from north slope of La Have River, looking south.



Plate 2: Taken in East Pit looking north.

observations in the immediate area.

Bedrock exposures are generally small and of poor quality due to activity in these pits. However, a few well-exposed outcrops in the west pit, in a stream 2 km. to the west, and in the west pit were examined in detail. The geology is shown in Figure 12 .

The area is underlain by slates and very few thin beds of quartzite of the Halifax Formation. These rocks strike northeasterly and dip moderately northwest. The rock in the Bridgewater area has been metamorphosed to the greenschist facies. There appear to be two folding episodes, East-West and North-South. The latter event has given rise to the anticline-syncline nature of the area and the Meguma in this area as a whole. Taylor (1969) describes the axis of a syncline north of the study area.

The area has also been glacieted. Smooth rock surfaces or roches moutonnées can be found, these exhibit southeastnortheast oriented striations. The thickness of glacial drift varies generally from a few meters to nil, as can be seen in areas of the West Pit and in road cuts of Highway 103. Some wells intersect bedrock at depths of 0.5 to 3 meters (Appendix A). Pebbles in drift material have been identified as Triassic sandstones and basalts, and as Devonian granites in addition to Meguma shates.

5



-5a-

The soil, known locally as the Bridgewater sandy loan, consists of light-brown sandy loan overlying a yellowish brown or olive-brown loam. These soil horizons vary in thickness.

The slates in the road-metal pits have interbedded layers of iron sulfides. These beds are up to 5 cm. wide and continue along strike for several tens of meters. The iron pyrite varies from blebs to a highly disseminated form. Where these slates contain numerous interlayers of these sulphides they are overlain by a conglomerate of probable Pleistocene age, called the Bridgewater Conglomerate by Cann and Hilchey (1958). Limonite appears to cement the overlying boulders and pebbles of slate, sandstone, and granite. Cann and Hilchey (1958) believe it formed when iron is dissolved during the soil-forming process and is reprecipitated as cement between the fragments.

Field Procedure

Thirty-three samples of water from wells, ditches and streams were collected in one liter polyurathane bottles. These were first cleaned with a very weak solution of HCl and then rinsed three times with distilled water.

-6-

Since, by November 19, 1977, the open wells had already been covered with plastic sheeting, brush and even sawdust to project them from freezing winter temperatures, the samples of well waters had to be taken from the taps at the surface. These and other conduits were composed of brass, copper, and stainless steel.

In each case the water was allowed to flow for about 3 minutes to remove as much contamination from the pumping system as possible. Before the bottles were filled they were rinsed twice with the water. The pH of each sample was measured at this time.

An attempt was made to record the depth of the wells (dug and drilled) but this information was not available in most cases. In general, however, drilled wells are deeper than dug wells.

Samples of surface waters (i.e. ponds, puddles, ditches, streams, and rivers) were obtained by simply dipping the water from the pools, etc.. Care was taken not to disturb the sediments on the bottom as these were rusty in some cases. All sample sites were examined carefully and are described in Appendix A.

Laboratory Procedure

In the laboratory, small (60 ml.) polyurathane bottles

-7-

were cleaned, rinsed, and then filled with water from each of the 33 samples taken in the field. Standards were made by taking appropriate aliquots of commercially prepared solutions and diluting to the working range for each element (Table I).

The waters were analyzed at the Department of Geology, Dalhousie University, on a Model 503 Perkin-Elmer Atomic Absorption Spectrophotometer equipped with printed readout. Standards were used to bracket each analysis. Indicated concentrations beyond the working range of the instrument for a given element were reanalyzed using a more dilute sample. Similarly, concentrations below the minimum detection level of the insturment for a given element were gently evaporated to concentrate them by a factor of exactly 10. These were also re-analyzed.

-8-

Table I

Range of Concentrations Used For Standards

2]	Lement	Ranne	of	Sta	anderds
	Ca	1	-	5	ppm
	Pe	1	-	5	ppm
	lín	0.5	-	2.5	ppm
	K	0.4	-	2.0	ppm
	Na	0.2	-	1.0	ppm
	Mg	0 . 1	-	0.5	ppm
	ν	0.2	-	4.0	ppm
	Zn	0.2	-	4.0	ppm
	Ba	0.2	-	4.0	ppm
	Cu	0.2	-	0.4	ppm

Data from Perkin-Elmer "Bluebook" (1974)

Results

The analytical results are shown in Table II. Each value listed is an average from 3 determinations on the same sample. Because vanadium analyses tended to be variable (noisy), the values listed in Table II have been calculated from a computer program developed by S. Parikh.

Graphic Analysis

The results of the analysis have been plotted on separate maps. Each map is coloured in a manner to show high and lows for each of the 10 elements and for free hydrogen (pH). The locations of the sample sites are shown on Figure 2.

High acidity (pH 3) occurs mainly in the road-metal pits and decreases towards the La Have River (Figure 3). The disturbed areas have pH values of 4 or 5. The town dump shows the least measured acidity (pH 6). Surface waters have lower acidity than the wells as a whole, and dug wells have a lower acidity than drilled wells.

Barium concentrations, ranging from 0.22 ppm to below detection levels, are highest in the road-metal pit and diminish somewhat towards the La Have River (Figure 4). Values along Highway 10 generally decreases northward from

-11-

Table II

Analyses of Waters from NW Bridgewater, H.S.

1 Dug 5 5.2 0.64 6.0 08 36 .25 .08 .006 .12 .85 2 Dug 4 3.05 0.42 11.6 0.09 30 2.2 ND ND .21 .085 3 Surface 4 1.2 0.60 6.8 .56 20 0.5 .06 .003 .01 .10 4 Drilled 4 ND .04 19.0 .04 0.25 0.1 .14 ND .015 .005 5 Spring 4 1.15 .70 8.0 .62 .24 .5 .22 ND .015 .095 6 Surface 5 2.4 1.46 6.0 .22 36 .1 .22 .01 .01 .115 7 Surface 3 3.05 1.46 8.6 .92 .32 .36 .22 .006 .005 .065 8 Surface 3 .030 .70 10.6 1.10 .5 <	Sample	pН	Ca•	K	Na•	Mn	Mg	Fe•	Ba*	v *	Cu [*]	Zn [*]
9 Dug 4 22.5 72 8.6 4.2 60 2.9 10 0.08 0.15 5 10 Dug 4 2.8 68 6.0 0.7 24 1 10 0.09 HD .005 11 Dug 4 2.95 2.4 3.0 0.4 10 1 ND 0.04 3.1 0.45 12 Drilled 4 ND 0.4 20.0 0.2 0.1 2 .22 ND 0.05 0.05 13 Drilled 4 ND ND 14.0 0.2 0.1 2 .22 ND ND 0.06 0.05 0.05 14 Sruface 4 2.00 1.32 2.5 2.46 2.4 2.5 2.2 ND 0.01 6.6 15 Surface 3 1.45 1.0 2.0 3.6 12 3.0 1.0 0.03 0.05 0.05 1.75 16 Dug 4 2.75 1.96 6.0	1 Dug 2 Dug 3 Surface 4 Drilled 5 Spring 6 Surface 7 Surface 8 Surface 9 Dug 10 Dug 10 Dug 11 Dug 12 Drilled 13 Drilled 14 Sruface 15 Surface 16 Dug 17 Dug 18 Drilled 19 Drilled 20 Drilled 20 Drilled 21 Town 22 Surface 23 Surface 24 Drilled 25 Drilled 25 Drilled 26 Drilled 27 Dug 28 Dug 29 Dug 30 Surface 31-33 Surface	5 444453 3 4444444 3 4454446355434	5.2 3.05 1.2 1.15 2.4 3.05 2.2 2.8 2.00 1.5 2.2 2.8 2.00 1.00 2.2 2.8 2.00 1.00 2.2 2.8 2.00 1.00 2.2 2.8 2.00 1.00 2.2 2.8 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.0	0.64 0.42 0.60 .04 .70 1.46 1.46 .70 .72 .68 2.4 .04 ND 1.32 1.0 1.32 1.0 1.32 1.0 1.32 1.0 2.4 .32 .68 2.4 .04 ND 1.32 1.0 2.4 .32 .68 .10 .02 .54 .58 .58 .58 .58	6.0 11.6 19.0 0.6 19.0 0.6 19.0 0.6 19.0 0.6 19.0 0.0 19.0 0.0 19.0 0.0 19.0 0.0 19.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	.08 0.09 .56 .04 .62 .92 1.10 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .02 .04 .04 .02 .04 .04 .02 .04 .04 .04 .04 .04 .04 .04 .04 .04 .04	360054626040114244446 8553023 0.222335621002122252051120400662	•25 2•25 0•51679112250212212555 ••107911225021221555 ••111575	• ND64222400 • 1222240 • 100 • 12222 • 100 • 100	•006 ND •003 ND •01 •006 •009 •004 ND ND •004 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •004 •005 •005	.12 .21 .015 .015 .015 .015 .015 .015 .015 .01	.85 .085 .10 .095 .165 .045 .005 .005 .005 .005 .005 .005 .00

• indicates samples have been diluted

* indicates samples have been concentrated

ND not detected

values are in ppm



1000 METERS

FIG 2 WATER SAMPLE LOCATIONS



-11b-



-110-..



-11d-



-11e-

·

- - -



















.



-11L-

the intersection with Highway 103. The surface waters tend to have higher values than the wells and the drilled wells tend to have lower values than dug wells. Barium concentrations seem, therefore, to decrease with depth.

Calcium concentrations range from 31 ppm to below detection levels. The highest values found in this study were at the town dump and in 3 wells along Highway 10 (Figure 5). The rest of the area shows moderate values of 1 to 10 ppm. Surface waters tend to have lower values than well water and those for drilled wells are lower in value than for dug wells. Calcium, then, seems to be variable with depth.

Copper values range from 3.1 ppm to values below detection. There appears to be little correlation of copper values with location within the study area (Figure 6). That is, isolated high values occur at intervals scattered throughout the area. Low values are also scattered. Copper concentrations in surface water are generally higher than the wells and dug wells have values higher than drilled wells. Copper concentrations therefore appear to decrease with depth.

Iron concentrations range from 8.2 ppm to values below detection. The highest values are in the pits and diminish

-12-

generally towards the La Have River (Figure 7). Values from waters tend to be higher than well waters, and those from dug wells are higher than for drilled wells. Iron concentrations, therefore, decrease with depth.

Potassium concentrations range from 1.92 ppm to values below detection. The hignest values (432 ppm) occur in the dump (Figure 8). The lowest values occur along Highway 10 and near the river. Surface water values are higher than well water, and drilled values have lower values than dug wells. Potassium then, decreases with depth.

Magnesium values range from 60 to 0.01 ppm, the highest: values are in the pits and diminish towards the La Have River. Surface water values are higher than well waters and dug wells have higher values than drilled wells. Magnesiùm, then, decreases with depth.

Manganese values range from 2.46 to 0.02 ppm, the highest values are in the pit and diminish towards the La Have River. Surface water values are higher than well waters and dug wells have higher values than drilled wells.

Sodium values range from 20 to 2.0 ppm. The study areas as a whole has higher values with localized highs in

-13-

wells along highway 10 which are greater than 10 ppm.

Vanadium values in the study area range from 0.01 to values below detection. The area as a whole is low with respect to vanadium.

Zinc values range from 0.85 to 0.005 ppm. The values are high in the pits and diminish gradually towards the La Have River, less so elsewhere. Surface water values generally are higher than well waters, dug well waters have higher values than drilled waters. Therefore zinc values decreases with depth.

In summary, then, concentrations of Zn, Fe, Ba, Mn, Mg, and K are relatively high in and around the pits and dump. These vlaues generally decrease downslope toward the river, except near Highway 103 where they remain fairly high. High and low concentrations of the other trace metals (Ca, Ma, Cu, V) seem to have an uneven, or at least trendless, distribution. However, in almost every case, the trace-metal concentrations, including the hydrogen ion concentrations, decrease with depth.

A Comparison With Other Waters

The trace-metal concentrations in these waters can be

-14-

compared to those in nearby Hebb Lake (Kelley 1975) and to drinking water standards prepared by the Department of Health and Welfare of Canada. Table III and Table IV which present the range of the samples in this study and how these can be compared to some known values. This shows calcium, copper, iron, potassium, magnesium, manganese, sodium and zinc to be above other known values, where barium is below known values.

Discussion

The source of most of the trace metals appears to be from the pit area. Since the metal concentrations are highest in the pits which are topographically higher and due to the chemical process at work here. It appears that surface and ground waters have migrated downslope along drainage ditches and cleavage planes (Plate 3 & 4 and Figure 14) to the river. Possibly the water from the pit has mixed with water from other areas and has become diluted.

In the pit area the main process involves the oxidation of sulfur by oxygen which is reduced. The redox reaction (Levinson, 1974, P. 77).

4 FeS₂ + 15 O₂ + 10 H₂O \Rightarrow 4 FeO(OH) + 8 SO₄⁼ + 16 H⁺

-15-

Table III

Drinking Water Standards

Calcium	200.0 ppm [#]	1.0 ppm *	15.0 ppm ⁺
Copper	1.0	0.05	1.0
Iron	0.3		0.3
Manganese	0.05		0.05
Magnesium	150.0		0.4
Sodium	200.0	3.2	6.0
Zinc	0.5	0.009	0.05

Deptment of Health and Welfare (1975)

* Hebb Lake, Kelley (1975)

+ Average River Water, Hem (1970)



-16a-

A comparison of trace metal concentrations with . Table iv other water values

- I range in this study
 x average river water (Hem 1970)
 A Hebb Lake (Kelley 1975)
 O drinking water standards (Dept health & welfare)

When freshly exposed pyrite comes in contact with the oxidizing atmosphere, the water is only slightly acid, so any iron dissolved by surface water will tend to precipitate as ferric hydorxide (Geothite) because of the insolubility of this compound in other than very acidic waters. The geothite may tend to cement loose particles and make an indurated conglomerate. However, with time, the H⁺ concentration should increase as described in the reaction above so that the ferric iron (Fe⁺⁺⁺) remains in solution. Also the acid waters have a far greater leaching effect on other materials composed of a variety of metals. In an acidic environment the metal Zn, Cu, Mn could easily be dissolved from sulfides, silicates or any material such as those common to dumps. Other metal such as Ca, Mg, K, Na, Ba were most likely leached in a similar manner from the slates. The high acidity near the pits would ensure that these metals remain in solution, even in an oxidizing environment.

As the acid metal bearing waters migrate away from the pits they would tend to lose their acidity through reactions with rocks and/or soils and being diluted by less acidic waters. This would again cause ferric iron to precipitate and to a lesser extent lh. Since Fe and Mn hydroxides adsorb metal ions when formed, it is possible

-17-



Arrow indicates flow direction

that when the hydorxides precipitate they would also remove the other metals.

Some local concentration such as those seen in the Na, V, Cu and Zn graphs could be due to other means than the pits. The localized higher sodium values appear along Highway 10 and thus they may be the result of road salt. The high vanadium values could be the result of the oil used to surface the dirt roads to the town dump, to the west pit, and to the east pit. The copper highs are also localized in some wells and may be the reflection of copper in the pumping fixtures. Similairly, some dug wells are often lined with galvanized (zinc plated) sheet metal; this could possibly explain some zinc anomalies.

Some wells show high values while nearby wells show lower values. The wells with the high concentrations tend to be dug wells while the lower values tend to be in deep drilled wells. The drilled wells appear to have been scrubbed of metal due to adsorption process of hydroxides. A correlation of estimated Eh and measured pH in the area shows how acidity and oxidation had decreased together. (Figure 15).

-20-



-21-

Conclusion

It has been shown that a spatial distribution of metals does exist in the study area. Metals from the pits have been leached from the sulfides which are interbedded with the slates. These were exposed when the pits were opened for road construction. These metal ions in solution migrate down slope along drainage ditches in the surface environment and along cleavage planes of the slates in the ground water system, and are adsorbed on hydroxides and precipitated.

These waters interact with well systems causing the deteriation in the quality of the drinking water, as some well waters are in excess of the drinking water standards and known averages of the area.

If this project was to be followed up, it may be interesting to test these results by taking two samples directly from the well and to acidify one of these two, to keep iron from precipitating out. It would be of interest to expand the analytical technique to include Pb, As, chorides, anions and a measure of the oxidation potential (Eh).

References

Boyle, R.W. et. al., 1958, Heavy Metal Content of Water and Sediments in Streams, Rivers and Lakes of Southwestern Nova Scotia: Geological Survey of Canada, Ottawa.

Cann, D.B. & Hilchey, J.D., 1958, Soil Survey of Lunenburg County, Nova Scotia, Queens Printer, Ottawa.

Davis, S.N. and DeWest, R.J.M., 1966, Hydrology. John Wiley and Son Inc., New York, 1966.

Garrels, R.M. & Christ, C.L., 1965, Solutions, Minerals and Equilibria, Harper and Row, New York.

Goldschmidt, V.H., 1958. Geochemistry, Oxford Clarendon Press.

Hem, J.D., 1970, Study and Interpretation of the Chemical Characteristics of Natural Water, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington.

Kelly, D.M., 1977, Drinking Water Quality Survey for Nova Scotia (Ca, Mg, and heavy metals) and its Relationship to Sudden Deaths Due to Health Attack. Engineering 1129, Special Project Report.

Krauskopf, K.B., 1967, Introduction to Geochemistry. McGraw-Hill Book Co., Toronto.

Levinson, A.A., 1974, Introduction to Exploration Geochemistry, Applied Publishing Ltd., Calgary.

Mason, B., 1952, Principles of Geochemistry, John Wiley and Sons, New York.

Petty, John W.A., 1952, Water Quality in a Stressed Environment, Burgess Publishing Co., Minneapolis.

Stanton, R.L., 1972, Ore Petrology. McGraw-Hill Book Co., Toronbo.

Trylor, F.C., 1969, Geology of the Annapolis - St. Marys Bay Map Area, Mova Scotia, Geological Survey of Canada, Ottawa.

Todd, D.K., 1959, Ground Water Hydrology, John Wiley and Sons Inc., New York.

Walton, W.C., 1970, Ground Water Resource Evaluation, McGraw-Hill Book Co., Toronto.

APPENDIX A

Sample	Description
1	Hand dug well 15-18' depth pH 5 possible contamination:railway
2	Hand dug well 6' depth pH 4 possible contamination:railway
. 3	Running stream - moderate rate pH 4 possible contamination:railway
4	Drilled well 150' depth, cased 20' pH 4, possible contanimation:railway
5	Spring pH4, possible contamination: railway
6	Construction pit for sewage, being built pH 5, possible contamination: highway
7	Stream in ditch by South Pit moderate rate pH 5
3	Pool in South Pit, slow drainage, pH 3
9	Dug well, pH 4
10	Dug well, pH 4
11	Dug well, pH 4
12	Drilled well 130' depth cased to 90' pH 4
13	Drilled well 140' depth cased 20' pH 4
14	Pool in dump in North pit, moderate drainage, pH 4, possible contamination: plastic, tires
15	Stream in North Pit, pH 3, moderate- slow flow

Sample	•	Description
15		Dug well 6.5' pH 4
17		Dug well, pH 4
18		Drilled well 104' depth, cased 20' pH 5
19		Dug well 6', pH 4
20		Drilled well, pH 4, 120' depth cased 60', possible contamination: sewage up slope
21		Town water, pH 4
22		Dump - general garbage slow drainage, pH 6
23		La Have River, moderate flow
24	•	Drilled well 75' depth, cased 20' pH 5
25		Drilled well 100' depth, cased 20' pH 5
26		Drilled well 160' depth, cased 20' pH 4
27		Dug well, pH 5, possible contamination: blasting at new school
28		Dug well, pH 5, possible contamination : blasting at new school
29		Dug well, pH 4, rossible contamination: blasting at new school
30,31,32		Stream, fast flow, very high, possible: contamination swamp
33	•	Pool in stream in pit, pH 3

-26-